Earth Negotl ations Bulletin

A Reportl ng Service for Environment and Devel opment Negotiations
CSW-44 on-lineat http://www.iisd.ca/4wcw/csw44/

Vol. 14 No. 29

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Friday, 10 March 2000

CSW-44 HIGHLIGHTS:
THURSDAY, 9 MARCH 2000
On Thursday, 9 March 2000, Working Group |1 met in the after-

noon to continue negotiation of actionsand initiativesto overcome
obstacles and achieve thefull and accel erated implementation of the
PFA. Working Group | met in an evening session to begin discussion
on achievements and obstacl esin the implementation of the 12 areas
of concern of the outcome document (E/CN.6/2000/L.1/Rev.1).

WORKING GROUP |

On achievementsin the area of women and poverty, text referring
to progressin the recognition of gender equality asaprerequisite for
poverty eradication and to efforts made to integrate a gender perspec-
tiveinto poverty eradication policies and programmes was | eft brack-
eted. Delegates agreed on text referring to atwo-pronged approach of
promoting employment and income-generating activities for women
and providing basic social services. The EU opposed text introduced
by the HOLY SEE on policies and programmesimplemented to
strengthen therole of the family in performing societal and develop-
mental roles, on the groundsthat the sentence was not gender-specific.
TheHOLY SEE proposed aredrafted version including recognition of
thevital role of women inthefamily, and the text remains bracketed.
On language referring to women's economic empowerment, the EU
preferred reference to micro-credit with micro-finance. The G-77/
CHINA, with support fromthe HOLY SEE, stated it prefered refer-
enceto micro-credit asawider concept than micro-finance. The EU
suggested reference to micro-finance including micro-credit, and
JUSCANZ proposed an alternative referenceto micro-credit and other
forms of micro-financing, which the EU accepted. The G-77/CHINA
requested timeto reflect on this proposal, and JUSCANZ's proposal
remains bracketed. On text referring to policy support for female-
headed households, JUSCANZ suggested referenceto policy develop-
ment and to the particular needs of these households. The proposal

remains bracketed. On text regarding enhanced global understanding
of gender and poverty issuesthrough research and devel opment,
JUSCANZ suggested referenceto differing impacts of poverty on
women and men, including the relationship between remunerated and
unremunerated work. Thistext remains bracketed.

On obstaclesin the area of women and poverty, the EU and
JUSCANZ rejected aproposal from the Holy Seeto include unful-
filled commitmentsto provide development assistancein text listing
factorsthat contribute to widening economic inequality between
women and men. The reference remains bracketed. Del egates cleared
text referring to income inequality, unemployment and deepening
poverty among the most vulnerable and marginalized groups.
Regarding text listing these groups, the EU suggested, and JUSCANZ
andthe HOLY SEE opposed, deleting it and placing it later in the text.
A compilation of proposalsby JUSCANZ and the Holy See, which
includesreferencesto, inter alia, rural women, single mothersand
indigenous women, was placed in brackets. JUSCANZ, the EU, the
HOLY SEE and the RUSSIAN FEDERATION made additionsto a
sentence listing obstaclesthat thwart national effortsto combat
poverty, including excessive military spending, conflicts, sanctions
and low levels of development assistance. JUSCANZ proposed text
stating that low levels of ODA and inefficient use of resourcesare
among thefactorsthat hinder national effortsto combat poverty. No
final agreement was reached on which of thesewould beretained. The
G-77/CHINA agreed with the general thrust of the paragraph, but
noted it would need timeto reflect on some of thewording. MEXICO
submitted, and later withdrew, aproposal to add a sentence on high
military spending absorbing resources for health, education and
employment services.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Tonya Barnes <tmb34@col umbia.edu>, Wendy Jackson <wendy@iisd.org>, Violette
Lacloche <violette@iisd.org> and Gretchen Sidhu <gsidhu@igc.org>. The Editor is PamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the M anaging Editor is L angston James "Kimo"
Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-ENV.) General Support for the Bulletin duri ng 2000isprovided by thethe German Federal
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of
Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the
Government of Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. Specific funding for coverage of the
Beijing +5 process has been provided by The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairsand the United Kingdom DFID. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 1 SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca>and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4,
Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercia publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial
publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://
www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image was taken above New York ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http:/livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin,
send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Friday, 10 March 2000

Earth NegotiationsBulletin

Vol. 14 No. 29 Page 2

WORKING GROUP ||

On governments' recognition of steps necessary to achievethe
goalsset outinthe PFA, aregional group supported reference to evalu-
ation of progress made since the Beijing Conference and to continued
and additional stepsto achievethe goals of the PFA. She opposed a
proposal to delete reference to current challenges aff ecting the full
realization of the PFA and proposed, and many del egates supported,
moving areference recognizing devel opment as a human right to
another part of thedocument. A group of countriesadvocated retaining
the original formulation and the reference to devel opment remains
bracketed. A regional group proposed, and many del egates supported,
inclusion of languageto differentiate chaptersreferring to current chal-
lenges and optionsin the outcome document. Many delegates
supported inclusion of areferenceto governments recommitting to the
PFA aswell asfurther committing to actionstoward implementation.
One delegate advocated reference to commitment to actions proposed
inthe report of the outcome document. Delegates required additional
timetodiscussthis.

On aparagraph calling on international institutions and other
actorsto implement the PFA by supporting governments’ effortsand
developing complementary programmes, many del egati ons supported
referring to trade unions and other stakeholdersinthelist of actorsand
referring to collaboration between governments and actors“where
appropriate.” A regional group suggested merging language recog-
nizing the contribution, autonomy and complementary roles of NGOs.
The merged text al so call s on governments and intergovernmental
organizationsto continue strengthening partnerships with NGOs,
particularly women’s groups, inimplementing the PFA. Some dele-
gates opposed reference to autonomy, while others noted this concept
has already been affirmed in the Beijing Declaration and should be
maintai ned. The reference remains bracketed.

Many delegates supported additiona text on achieving gender
equality and women'sfull participationin all spheres of society as
essential for good governance, political legitimacy and effective
management of social and economic resources. A group of countries
expressed concern about referring to good governance and palitical
legitimacy, stating these terms need to be fully qualified. Many delega-
tions proposed del eting thereferenceto palitical legitimacy, notingitis
encompassed within the concept of good governance. Chair Bhatta-
charjee suggested bracketing the reference to good governance and
discussion of this paragraph was postponed pending the outcome of
consultations.

On achieving gender equality, del egates wel comed referenceto the
empowerment of women. A regional group supported reference to
inequalities between women and men and girls and boys and to their
responsibilities, opportunities and possibilities. On addressing
women’sand men’sinterests, concerns, experiences and prioritiesin
the design, implementation, monitoring and eval uation of all actions, a

delegate opposed referenceto systematically addressing these inter-
ests, concerns, experiences and priorities and suggested retaining the
original formulation. She a so opposed reference to national moni-
toring but welcomed language on follow-up and evaluation. Many
countries suggested, and agroup of countries opposed, referenceto
national and international monitoring, stating that international moni-
toring iscarried out regularly. The group opposing reference to inter-
national monitoring responded that implementation isthe primary
responsibility of national governments and international monitoring
applies only to follow-up mechanisms. Another group of countries
suggested the scope of monitoring not be specified to allow introduc-
tory paragraphsto remain broad. Chair Bhattacharjee suggested brack-
eting the reference to monitoring pending further consultations.

One group of countries suggested referenceto thelife cycleand
diversity of women in a paragraph on designing policiesand imple-
menting further actions and initiativesto achieve gender equality.
Another group of countries suggested adding areferencetoindigenous
people, migrants, refugees, displaced people and “ other status’ to the
list of statusreflecting women’s diversity. One del egate proposed
deleting thislist and referenceto thelife cycleto refer instead to all
stages of thelifecycle, including in al conditionsof life, for all
women.

On endorsement of the PFA by governments and the international
community asindication of agreement on acommon devel opment
agenda, with gender equality as an underlying principle, many delega-
tions supported reference to equal accessto financial and economic
resourcesfor all women. A regional group preferred giving the text a
forward-looking view and suggested reference to new and further initi-
ativesto the PFA. A group of countries supported language referring to
development, while other del egations preferred keeping the para-
graph’sfocus on gender equality.

IN THE CORRIDORS

The pace of negotiations has picked up, although the present
cruising speed might not produce clean text by the end of the PrepCom
asdelegates |eave pieces of bracketed text behind to help negotiations
find their way hometo introductory paragraphs. In this context, some
members of the groups are growing impatient at the trends of negotia-
tions. However, delegates all agree on Chair Bhattacharjee'sreminder
that “inthe UN, there can be no emerging consensus, just amerging of
consensus.”

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
WORKING GROUPS: Working Group | isexpected to recon-

veneat 3:00 pm, in a Conference Room to be announced, to finish
negotiating text on women and poverty and carry on discussion of
other achievements and obstacles. Working Group |1 will meet at 3:00
pmin Conference Room 1 to continue discussion of actionsand initia-
tives (E/CN.6/2000/L.1/Rev.1).



	HEADLINE 2 - CSW-44 HIGHLIGHTS: THURSDAY, 9 MARCH 2000
	HEADLINE 3 - WORKING GROUP I
	HEADLINE 3 - 
	HEADLINE 3 - 
	HEADLINE 3 - WORKING GROUP II
	HEADLINE 3 - IN THE CORRIDORS
	HEADLINE 2 - THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

